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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The North Avenue Presbyterian Church is a twin-towered building of Romanesque
design located on the southeastern corner of Peachtree Street and North Avenue. The
central area of the church consists of a nave divided by a center aisle and covered
by a pitched roof. At the nave's eastern end is a platform which projects into the
building's central portion. This platform supports a pulpit and communion table
and behind the platform are areas for the choir and organ. Leading into the church's
nave are a triple-arched vestibule and narrow narthax. Flanking the southeast end
of the vestibule is a turret which rises only slightly more than does the vestibule.
The northwest end of the vestibule is flanked by a tower of larger proportions.

The exterior of the building is built of cut granite laid in random ashlar.
The stone comprising the arches and other structural features is of the same quality
and color. The play of light and dark on the variegated exterior surfaces indicates
the rustication of the facades.

The Peachtree Street facade of the church is the most impressive of the building.
The northwest tower, joined on its left by a small narthax area, is divided into
three zones. The first two zones are defined by styip buttresses at the towers' corners.
These buttresses begin at the bottom of the third and highest zone. They remain one
width until they reach the lowest or first zone, where they are stepped out. Further
accentuating the difference between the first two zones are variations in window
treatment. The lowest zone contains one large arched type window which is divided
by a mullion and transom. The second zone contains three ribbon windows joined by
stone columns and lintel. The third zone is set off by a stringcourse. Two elon-
gated arches open into the church's bell. Above the arches is another stringcourse,
and the tower is topped with battlements. On the tower's right is a triple arched
vestibule. The vestibule is raised above street level so that a flight of seven
steps was needed te connect the two. Like all arches in the church, those of the
vestibule are rounded. However, the stoutness of the supporting columns makes the
vestibule arches faintly resemble the Syrian arch. The columns are without fluting,
and the capitals are of a stylized foliage motif. The arches support a high wall
which contains the entry to a balcony located in the sanctuary's rear. A stringcourse
projects from the exterior wall before three stained glass windows are reached.
Centered above the three arches, these windows once divided a wall which ends with a
level course, Recessed, yet plainly visible above the vestibule is the pitched
roof and a pediment-like area. A large rose window pierces the triangular masonry.
To the right of the vestibule is a turret topped with a shallow conical roof. The
turret wall has two windows, an arched stained glass one above a stained glass omne
of rectangular shape. A stringcourse projects above these windows, and the curved
walls end in a battlement. To the left of the turret is a 1950 addition in the
same rusticated stonework.

The north facade of the structure reveals that the church is of two-story con-
struction. A lower level of sash windows indicates the existence of an area which
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originally contained classroom space. Above these are the stained glass windows of
the sanctuary. The window closest to the tower is rectangular in shape while the
remaining ones are of the arched type. Originally, two smaller arched windows flanked
a larger one, but a 1960 addition necessitated the inclusion of two more arched

types to the left of the originals. The smaller windows are divided by transoms,
while the larger one is divided by a series of five circles, two arches, and a smaller
rectangle. The larger window is accentuated further since it is centered in a wall
dormer. The 1960 addition to the east end of the building contains an ambulatory
which projects from the north wall. The lower level of this addition contains a
portico which leads into the church's chapel. Strip buttresses project at intervals
on the north facade. The south facade is essentially the same as the north except 1
that the 1960 addition there has exterior walls of red brick. This facade is not
clearly visible as a parking deck is adjacent to the building.

The eastern face of the building is also not clearly visible. On the lower
level of the building, stained glass windows appear. These were installed in the
1950 renovation of the church. Since the 1960 extension of the sanctuary occurred
over a parking area which connected the eastern face of the building and a nearby
church building of Gothic design, this wall and gable is of plain design and not
readily visible. Hence, the eastern facade is of two parts of which the upper portion
projects eastward over a parking area and lower portion of the face.

The interior design of North Avenue Presbyterian Church is of a simple, yet
rich design. Central doors flanked by two rectangular stained glass windows lead
into a narrow hall/narthax. This halli connects the two larger areas created by the
tower and turret, and these entrance areas also have doors which lead outside to the
vestibule. The turret also contains a staircase which provides access to both the
balcony above the sanctuary and the offices below. Since the upper half of the
interior wall of the hallway is clear glass, the nave is immediately visible upon
entering the church. The nave has a center aisle and side aisles which lead directly
to a raised platform at the church's eastern end. Battered walls slope directly
to the ceiling. The lower third of the walls are covered with painted paneling while
the upper portion of the wall contains stained glass windows. The positioning of
these windows is identical on both sides of the nave. Pastel colors give the original
three arched windows a distinct softness which reveals their origins in the Tiffany
Studio. The stronger primary colors of the last two windows on either side indicate
their more recent design. At the eastern end of the nave is a projecting platform
of the same paneling found on the walls. Behind this platform is an area occupied
by the choir and organ. The difference between these two areas is defined by an
arch quite similar to the proscenium arch found in many theaters. Although the walls
on either side of the arch were added in 1960, the arch and platform were moved twenty
feet from their 1901 location to their present position. The 1960 addition added
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seating for some two hundred church members. Ribbed supports begin where the wall
curves upward and continue along the ceiling. Two run the length of the nave and flank
both sidesof a shallow dome. Ribbed supports also run the width of the nave at
periodic intervals. The supports end in a stylized floral motif. 1In the center of

the dome is a multi-colored skylight of geometric design which was added in the

1970's. Another recent addition is a metal chandelier. Its octagonal shape is very
similar to the Romanesque chandelier in Charlemagne's Palatine Chapel which was

begun during the late eighth century in Aachen, Germany. To the rear of the church

is a rose window which is partially hidden by a balcony. The balcony contains original
pews while those below were installed in 1960. Today, the church is carpeted in gold,
and the walls are of a pastel gold color. Paneling is of the same pastel gold as

well as a deeper tone of gold and muted green. Originally, the church was uncarpeted, 4
and the color scheme was white and green with paneling and ribbed supports stained
a dark color.

Completed in 1901, the building originally stood among large homes of the
Victorian era. Today, the church's setting is much more urban as high-rise office and
apartment buildings and single-story commercial structures surround the facility.

The north and west facades of the building remain unaltered. In 1960, the east end

of the sanctuary was extended some twenty feet, and during the same year, an adjoining
activities facility was built on the building's south face. The internal composition
of the sanctuary remains essentially the same as in 1901. The area below the
sanctuary was originally used as classroom space. During a 1950 renovation this

area was subdivided into church offices. Painting and the installation of carpeting

are periodic alterations made on the building.

Although Alexander C. Bruce and Thomas H. Morgan's original design for the
North Avenue Presbyterian Church has been modified, it still retains the Romanesque
quality which Bruce and Morgan assigned to it. This quality goes beyond that of super-
ficial elements such as rustication and round arches. The asymmetrical compostion
and massiveness of the tower—-dominated design still exists, the variety of roof
lines prevail, large and simple forms are evident, and the diversity of surfaces
and planes remains a featured element of the building's composition. Hence, the
ability of Bruce and Morgan's design to withstand changes indicates that their North
Avenue Presbyterian Church is a building of fine Romanesque quality.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The North Avenue Presbyterian Church is significant for its role in ¥eligion
in the development of Atlanta.. This was the first Presbyterian church to locate in
the fashionable suburbs north of town and thus reflects the development of suburban
life in Atlanta.

During the autumn of 1898, Messrs. C. R. Harris, J. M. High, and J. D. McCarty
conducted d survey of area residents, which indicated the need of a suburban church. On
December 4, 1898, the Presbytery chartered the new congregation as the Ninth Presbyterian
Church. Early in 1899, the congregation selected the southeast corner of Peachtree Street
and North Avenue as the church's location. Accordingly, the church was named the North
Avenue Presbyterian Church. Church services were held in a Methodist Church located
on nearby Merrits Avenue.

Construction of the sanctuary began in May of 1900 and the building was completed
in June of 1901. The church has sponsored educational, as well as religious, activities.
In 1902, the church financed a missionary in China and the congregation later sent the
first woman missionary to the American Indians. An elementary school erected in 1909
was enlarged tc include a secondary school here. This school continued at the church
until 1951 when it was merged with the Washington Seminary to become the Westminster
Schools.

Also of outstanding significance is the architecture of the church. The church
is of Romanesque style and was designed by Alexander Campbell Bruce and Thomas Henry
Morgan. Bruce was the first member of the American Institute of Architects to locate
in Atlanta and Morgan was the founder and first president of the Atlanta Chapter of
the AIA.
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A Concise History of Western Architecture, R. Furneaux Jordan, 1969.
The City Builder, November, 1926.

Minutes of the Session, North Avenue Presbyterian Church, 1898-1913.
Personal inspection, Scott Russell, June, 1977.

Interview with Henry Hill, North Avenue Presbyterian Church, July, 1977.
Interview with Austin Williams, Atlanta, Georgia, July, 1977.




"North Avenue Presbyterian Church
Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia
On Site Inspection and Atlanta

Source:

Scale:

Legend:

Penchrree ST

City Map

1" = 20' approx.
Distances shown are approximate

N.R. Boundaries

01d Section

Commearcinl

C STRUcCTURE

,oe

,or/

"Pm«mc( Lor For Church

Additions 05/ 5
Nor A Rvenue,
. -
- , e — L. —— &wkx— ey - w — — R v
gy 2T 7 ~f ST V“;«j 8
| g
| ,‘ |
) g~_ ; }
[ 2
11 { :
| r : 1 ‘
i
| ’Q OLD?R SQCT}\for\ { LATe R, {’
g g CHURC ADDIMION
EQ ‘ . h l
! \Q l "ol
I i 9
l ; J
i al
. }il 3 i 3
e 8
31 1)}
0 {
| |
P

+& N LYDOD

L o o — e~ =

30!

AOMMER.CIRL STRUCTURES

& /t50°

—_—

861 21 pop



